
 
 

TOWN OF EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE 
10 FRONT STREET • EXETER, NH • 03833-3792 • (603) 778-0591 •FAX 772-4709 

www.exeternh.gov 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
EXETER CONSERVATION COMMISSION 

Monthly Meeting 
The Exeter Conservation Commission will meet in the Nowak Room, Exeter Town Offices 

 at 10 Front Street, Exeter on Tuesday, December 13th, 2022 at 7:00 P.M. 
 
 
NON_PUBLIC SESSION  

1. Non-Public Session pursuant to RSA 91-A:3, II (d) for consideration of the acquisition, sale or 
lease of real or personal property. 
 

Call to Order: 
2. Introduction of Members Present   
3. Public Comment 

Action Items:  
1. Conceptual discussion for the construction of a parking lot and new building for the Volvo 

Dealership on Portsmouth Ave, Tax Map/Lot 52-108, 54-3-4-1 and 54-3-3 (Cindy Balcius, 
Stoney Ridge Environmental, Daniel Enxing, Volvo) 

2. Deliberative Session CIP Discussion  
3. End of Year Expenditures  
4. Committee Reports 

a. Property Management  
b. Trails  
c. Outreach Events  
d. Other Committee Reports (River Study, Sustainability, Energy/CPAC, Tree) 

5. Approval of Minutes: November 8th, 2022 Meeting 
6. Correspondence 
7. Other Business   
8. Next Meeting: Date Scheduled (1/13/22), Submission Deadline (12/2/22) 

 
 
Andrew Koff   
Exeter Conservation Commission 
Posted December 9th, 2022 Exeter Town Website www.exeternh.gov and Town Office kiosk.  
 
 
 

ZOOM Public Access Information: 
Virtual Meetings can be watched on Channel 22 and on Exeter TV's Facebook and YouTube pages.  
To participate in public comment, click this link: https://exeternh.zoom.us/j/88104740927 
To participate via telephone, call: +1 646 558 8656 and enter the Webinar ID: 881 0474 0927 
Please join the meeting with your full name if you want to speak. 
Use the "Raise Hand" button to alert the chair you wish to speak. On the phone, press *9. 
More instructions for how to participate can be found here: https://www.exeternh.gov/townmanager/virtual-
town-meetings Contact us at extvg@exeternh.gov or 603-418-6425 with any technical issues. 

 

http://www.exeternh.gov/
http://www.exeternh.gov/
https://exeternh.zoom.us/j/88104740927


12/7/22, 2:06 PM Town of Exeter, NH Mail - Exeter Volvo -Portsmouth Avenue

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=86fab22653&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f%3A1751121213763995293%7Cmsg-f%3A17511212137639… 1/1

Kristen Murphy <kmurphy@exeternh.gov>

Exeter Volvo -Portsmouth Avenue
1 message

Cindy Balcius <cbalcius@stoneyridgeenv.com> Fri, Dec 2, 2022 at 11:40 AM
To: Kristen Murphy <kmurphy@exeternh.gov>, Daniel Enxing <dan@volvocarsexeter.com>
Cc: Cindy Balcius <cbalcius@stoneyridgeenv.com>

Hi Kristen…thanks for meeting us on Monday. Attached you will find the draft plan and a preliminary Wetland Function
and Value Assessment. As discussed, we would like to attend the December 13, 2022 Conservation Meeting to present
the draft plan to the commission, discuss the impacts, wetlands ,

And potential wetland mitigation ideas.

 

Please let me know if you have any questions

Sincerely

 

Cindy

 

 

Cynthia M Balcius CWS, CSS, CPESC

Stoney Ridge Environmental LLC

8 Kiana Road

Alton, NH 03809

(603)776-5825

cbalcius@stoneyridgeenv.com

 

Please note: We have moved! Our new address is

8 Kiana Road, Alton, NH

 

Final FV&A Document-Reduced.pdf
8779K

https://www.google.com/maps/search/8+Kiana+Road+Alton,+NH+03809?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/8+Kiana+Road+Alton,+NH+03809?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:cbalcius@stoneyridgeenv.com
https://www.google.com/maps/search/8+Kiana+Road,+Alton,+NH?entry=gmail&source=g
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=86fab22653&view=att&th=184d3b77510dc69d&attid=0.1&disp=attd&safe=1&zw




Site Locus
Exeter Volvo Propery

146, 0, & 140 Portsmouth Ave
Tax Map 51, Lots 1 & 3.4, Tax Map 52, Lot 108

Exeter New Hampshire,

SRE # 22-057

Stoney Ridge Environmental-233 Prospect Mountain Rd.-Alton, NH 03809

Scale 1:24,000

Approximate
Site Location
Approximate
Site Location

































5,961.65

Aerial
Legend

Notes

146, 0, & 140 Portsmouth Ave
Exeter, NH
Tax Map 51, Lots 1 & 3.4 & Tax Map 52, Lot 
108

© NH GRANIT, www.granit.unh.edu

Map Scale

4,2881:

Map Generated: 6/15/2022

State

County

City/Town



© Latitude Geographics Group Ltd.

0.2

THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION

WGS_1984_Web_Mercator_Auxiliary_Sphere

Miles0.2

Notes

22-057

Volvo, Portsmouth Ave, Exeter

Legend

This map is a user generated static output from an Internet mapping site and is for

reference only. Data layers that appear on this map may or may not be accurate,

current, or otherwise reliable.

0.110

1: 6,733

Prime Wetlands Only

Parcel Polygons

Parcel Polygons

Attributes for Additional Lines

Parcel Lines

Prime Wetlands

Prime Wetlands with 100 ft Buffer





5,961.65

NWI-Plus Overview
Legend

Notes

146, 0, & 140 Portsmouth Ave
Exeter, NH
Tax Map 51, Lots 1 & 3.4 & Tax Map 52, Lot 
108

© NH GRANIT, www.granit.unh.edu

Map Scale

4,2881:

Map Generated: 6/15/2022

Parcels
Parcel Polygons

Attributes for Additional Lines

State

County

City/Town

NWIPlus
Estuarine and Marine Deepwater

Estuarine and Marine Wetland

Freshwater Emergent Wetland

Freshwater Forested/Shrub Wetland

Freshwater Pond

Lake

Other

Riverine



© Latitude Geographics Group Ltd.

0.2

THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION

WGS_1984_Web_Mercator_Auxiliary_Sphere

Miles0.2

Notes

22-057

Volvo, Portsmouth Ave, Exeter

Legend

This map is a user generated static output from an Internet mapping site and is for

reference only. Data layers that appear on this map may or may not be accurate,

current, or otherwise reliable.

0.110

1: 6,733

Tidal Wetlands 

Parcel Polygons

Parcel Polygons

Attributes for Additional Lines

Parcel Lines

Prime Wetlands

Prime Wetlands with 100 ft Buffer

Tidal Waters / Tidal Wetlands

Tidal wetland

Transitional salt marsh

Salt marsh

Mud flat

Tidal water



Legend
Map by NH GRANIT

© NH GRANIT, www.granit.unh.edu

Notes

Map Scale

5,7801:

Map Generated: 11/30/2022

Parcels
Parcel Polygons

Attributes for Additional Lines

Additional Lines

State

County

City/Town

WAP 2020: Wildlife Habitat Land 
Cover

Alpine

Appalachian oak-pine

Cliff and Talus slope

Coastal island and Rocky coast

Developed Impervious

Developed or Barren land

Dune

Floodplain forest

Grassland

Hemlock-hardwood-pine

High-elevation spruce-fir

Lowland spruce-fir

Northern hardwood-conifer

Northern swamp

Open water

Peatland

Pine barren

Rocky ridge

Salt marsh

Sand/Gravel

Temperate swamp

Marsh and shrub wetland

WAP 2020: Rivers and Streams
Coldwater

Large Warm

Tidal

Warm/Cool

WAP 2020: Estuarine and Marine
Estuarine

Marine



Legend
Map by NH GRANIT

© NH GRANIT, www.granit.unh.edu

Notes

Map Scale

5,7801:

Map Generated: 11/30/2022

Parcels
Parcel Polygons

Attributes for Additional Lines

Additional Lines

State

County

City/Town

WAP 2020: Highest Ranked 
Wildlife Habitat

1 Highest Ranked Habitat in NH

2 Highest Ranked Habitat in Region

3 Supporting Landscape

WAP 2020: Wildlife Habitat Land 
Cover

Alpine

Appalachian oak-pine

Cliff and Talus slope

Coastal island and Rocky coast

Developed Impervious

Developed or Barren land

Dune

Floodplain forest

Grassland

Hemlock-hardwood-pine

High-elevation spruce-fir

Lowland spruce-fir

Northern hardwood-conifer

Northern swamp

Open water

Peatland

Pine barren

Rocky ridge

Salt marsh

Sand/Gravel

Temperate swamp

Marsh and shrub wetland

WAP 2020: Rivers and Streams
Coldwater

Large Warm

Tidal

Warm/Cool

WAP 2020: Estuarine and Marine
Estuarine

Marine





Brickyard Park and Griset-Mendez 
Conservation Area

Natural Resources
Brickyard Park and the Griset-Mendez Conservation Area is a

54.75 acre area of predominately undeveloped woodland
comprised of two separate parcels. The Brickyard Park parcel
is a 12.75 acre property owned and managed by the Exeter
Parks and Recreation Department. It contains a 2.25 acre
athletic field and parking area predominantly used for group
sports such as flag football. The remaining 10.5 acres are
undeveloped woodland. The Griset-Mendez Conservation Area
is a 31.61 acre property owned and managed by the Exeter
Conservation Commission. The large unfragmented block of
deciduous and conifer forests and wetlands associated with
Scamen Brook. The undeveloped portions of these parcels
provide quality habitat that supports a diverse array of wildlife
and contributes to the protection of an important wildlife
corridor. This makes it an excellent spot for viewing wildlife
including beavers, deer, coyote, fox, rodents, amphibians and a
variety of bird species.

Property Dedication
Brickyard Park and the Griset-Mendez Conservation Areas

were deeded by Brian Griset and Adela Mendez-Griset and their
family to the Town of Exeter for the enjoyment of all its
residents and other creatures in the belief that everyone should
leave this Earth just a little bit better for each new generation.

The 12.75 acre Brickyard Park and recreational fields located
along Kingston Road were dedicated to provide a children’s
active recreational area on the west side of Exeter in 1993.
Three decades later, in 2021, the adjacent Mendez-Griset parcel
was deeded to the Town for passive recreation, ecological
education opportunities and to protect a diverse ecosystem to
support native NH wildlife. This property was deeded in
association with the Hidden Meadow development. The
development includes a contiguous, privately-owned 10-acre
open space managed by the homeowners association. This
private parcel features grassland habitat which adds to the
diversity of habitat types in the region, helping to support a
broader array of wildlife diversity.

Compatible Uses
The two Town-owned properties may be enjoyed by the

public for on-trail passive recreation including hiking and bird
watching. Dogs are welcomed but must be leashed and cleaned
up after. In the winter, cross-country skiing and snowshoeing
enable year-round exploration of the area.

Wheeled and motorized vehicles, hunting, camping and fires
are prohibited.

Trail Information & Historical Use  
A small trail has been installed connecting to both the Brickyard Park parking lot and the

dedication bench south of Brickyard Park through the woodland of both parcels. The trail
follows a former agricultural road, crosses and old beaver dam that is now an earthen path. The
former agricultural roadway supports a vibrant population of cottontail rabbits and the woodland
overstory along the trail is a great area to see barred owls. This trail ultimately connects with a
rail path that functioned when the area was used as Eno’s Brickyard. Supplies were carted from
the brickyard to the railroad via this rail path.
Please note: the old rail path is privately owned and not open to the public at this time.
Please respect private property signs.

Trail Loop 0.45 mi.    

USE LIMITATIONS:



Smith Page
Conservation

Area



Oaklands Town Forest Region 
Natural Resources

The Oaklands Town Forest is a 230-acre area of conservation
lands managed by the Exeter Conservation Commission. The
property was originally conserved in the 1990s with 137 acres
of additional parcels conserved adjacent to the town forest over
the years. In 1991, by vote of the residents of Exeter, the land
was officially designated as a Town Forest, giving it special
allowances under NH Revised Statutes 31:112. The forest
spans the area north of Route 101 between Watson and
Newfields Roads (Rte. 85). Several trails cross onto private
property, lands managed by home ownerships and conservation
easements and rely on permission from the landowners.

The large unfragmented block of deciduous and conifer
forests is important for wildlife diversity, quality habitat and
movement corridors. This makes it an excellent spot for
viewing wildlife including beavers, deer, coyote, fox, rodents,
reptiles, amphibians and many bird species. The land is
characterized by numerous boulder and ledge outcrops,
hummocky terrain, and a number of vernal pools and wetlands.
Forestry management is guided by a long term forest
management plan which includes occasional selective
harvesting.

Trail Information 
The area has a well-established trail system that provides a

number of outdoor opportunities, including cross-country
skiing, running and jogging, hiking, orienteering and mountain
biking. The trail connects to the Henderson Swasey Town
Forest trail network to the south through a large culvert that
runs beneath Route 101. The trails extend into Newfields to a
parking lot on Deertrees Ln. Though the main trailhead is west
of Newfields Road, additional access points occur at Watson
Road, and intercept private land within the Forest Ridge and
Captains Meadow land.

Temporary closures may occur during very muddy or wet
conditions. Closures will be posted at entrance kiosks and the
Town of Exeter website. Private landowners have the right to
limit access. Please respect closures for the benefit of all users.

Compatible Uses
The property is open year round for passive recreation such

as hiking, wildlife viewing, biking, winter snowshoeing and
cross-country skiing, and hunting in season. Users should wear
blaze orange during hunting seasons.

Leashed dogs under their owners control are permitted. As a
courtesy to others and out of respect to your trail system, please
carry-in-carry out all trash and clean up dog waste.

Photo circa 1950s courtesy of the Morrissette Family

First Time to Our Trails?
This is a complex network of trails. Only our colored trails have
painted blazes, with double blazes indicating direction changes.
Though we attempt to keep blazes maintained, a forest is a
dynamic system and markers may or may not always be visible.
Always follow safe hiking standards, let others know your hike
plan, be adequately dressed and carry food and water, be aware
of sunset times, pay attention to your surroundings, weather and
trail conditions. Staying safe is YOUR responsibility.

USE LIMITATIONS:

NEW TO THE TRAIL NETWORK? 
Visit openstreetmap.org

And click on the ARROW
to location your position. 

Distances:

5.1 mi.    Red Loop

YOU ARE HERE



Henderson Swasey Town Forest 
Natural Resources

The Henderson-Swasey Town Forest is a 220-acre area of
conservation lands managed by the Exeter Conservation
Commission. The property was originally conserved in the
1970s with additional parcels added over the years. In 1991, by
vote of the residents of Exeter, the land was officially
designated as a Town Forest, giving it special allowances under
NH Revised Statutes 31:112. The forest spans the area south of
Route 101 between Commerce Drive and Newfields Road (Rte.
85) near the rail-road trestle underpass. Several trails cross onto
private property and rely on permission from the landowners.

The large unfragmented block of deciduous and conifer
forests is important for wildlife diversity, quality habitat and
movement corridors. This makes it an excellent spot for
viewing wildlife including beavers, deer, coyote, fox, rodents,
reptiles, amphibians and many bird species. The land is
characterized by numerous boulder and ledge outcrops,
hummocky terrain, and a number of vernal pools and wetlands.
Forestry management is guided by a long term forest
management plan which includes occasional selective
harvesting.

Trail Information 
The area has a well-established trail system that provides a

number of outdoor opportunities, including cross-country
skiing, running and jogging, hiking, orienteering and mountain
biking. The trail connects to the Oaklands Town Forest trail
network to the north through a large culvert that runs beneath
Route 101.Though the main trailhead is west of Newfields
Road, several other access points exist on private lands
including: via the C3i parking lot off of the Commerce Way cul-
de-sac, Industrial Drive, behind the Meeting Place, and Norris
Brook Condominiums.

Temporary closures may occur during very muddy or wet
conditions. Closures will be posted at entrance kiosks and the
Town of Exeter website. Private landowners have the right to
limit access. Please respect closures for the benefit of all users.

Compatible Uses
The property is open year round for passive recreation such

as hiking, wildlife viewing, biking, and winter snowshoeing and
cross-country skiing.

Leashed dogs under their owners control are permitted. As a
courtesy to others and out of respect to your trail system, please
carry-in-carry out all trash and clean up dog waste.

Hunting is not permitted on this property, but visitors
connecting to the Oaklands Town Forest should be aware that
hunting is permitted there.

Photo circa 1950s courtesy of the Morrissette Family

First Time to Our Trails?
This is a complex network of trails. Only our colored trails have
painted blazes, with double blazes indicating direction changes.
Though we attempt to keep blazes maintained, a forest is a
dynamic system and markers may or may not always be visible.
Always follow safe hiking standards, let others know your hike
plan, be adequately dressed and carry food and water, be aware
of sunset times, pay attention to your surroundings, weather and
trail conditions. Staying safe is YOUR responsibility.

USE LIMITATIONS:

NEW TO THE TRAIL NETWORK? 
Visit openstreetmap.org

And click on the ARROW
to location your position. 

Distances:

0.65 mi.    Green Loop
1.75 mi.    Blue Loop
0.98 mi.    Yellow Loop
0.50 mi.    Gas Pipeline 

YOU ARE HERE



1 
 

Exeter Conservation Commission 1 
November 8, 2022 2 

Nowak Room 3 
Exeter Town Offices 4 

10 Front Street 5 
Draft Minutes 6 

 7 
Call to Order 8 

 9 
1.  Introduction of Members Present (by Roll Call)  10 
 11 
Present at tonight’s meeting were by roll call, Chair Andrew Koff, Nick Campion, Don Clement, Alternate, 12 
and Kyle Welch, Alternate 13 
 14 
Staff Present:  Kristen Murphy, Conservation & Sustainability Planner 15 
 16 
Mr. Koff called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM and indicated Alternates Don Clement and Kyle Welch 17 
would be active. 18 
 19 
2.  Public Comment (7:00 PM) 20 
 21 
Mr. Koff asked if there were any questions or comments from the public related to non-agenda matters 22 
and there were none. 23 
 24 
Action Items 25 
 26 
1.  Draft Floodplain Development Ordinance Amendment 27 
 28 
Ms. Murphy reported the amendment to the Floodplain Ordinance has been drafted to elevate the base 29 
flood to 2’ (currently it is at 1’).  She worked with RPC to establish an advisory area to recommend 30 
owners follow the SLR maps extending beyond the FEMA maps.  This is for a small area of Water Street 31 
and on Portsmouth Ave where the water treatment plant is.  There would be no change to flood 32 
insurance. It would formalize the process of what applicants provide including certifications.  She met 33 
with the Master Plan Oversight Committee. The amendment would go to Town Meeting after public 34 
hearings with the Planning Board. 35 
 36 
Ms. Murphy posted the map showing the area in pink, which is required, and the portion shown in blue 37 
where new construction or substantial improvements would trigger recommendations to follow the 38 
same procedure as if in the flood plain, to be 2’ above base flood elevation. 39 
 40 
Mr. Clement asked why not require this in this area and Mr. Koff noted fiscal impacts would likely cause 41 
it to be shot down.  Mr. Welch noted, as being devil’s advocate, that it would put a lot of faith in the SLR 42 
models for 2050 and 2100 which show 4” SLR with storm surge in 2100.  Ms. Murphy noted it promotes 43 



2 
 

education and public outreach and communication.  The levels could be higher than modeled if there is 44 
not a change in fossil fuel reduction.  She noted these models don’t reflect inland rise modeled by the 45 
Cape study. 46 

 47 
2. Committee Reports 48 

 49 
a.  Property Management 50 

 51 
i.  Seasonal Closure of McDonnell Conservation Area Gate Effective: 10/28 52 

 53 
Ms. Murphy reported the gate is closed for the season and while this would leave 54 
parking for only one or two cars, people can still walk out there.  She thanked, 55 
Diane, Bruce, Charlene and the McSweenies for their help with closing the gate each 56 
day.  Having the gate closed will cut down on calls to Police during the winter 57 
months. 58 
 59 

ii. Conservation Land Mowing & Recommendations for Next Year 60 
 61 

Mr. Murphy discussed mowing with David O’Hearn.  Morrissette had been divided 62 
into three areas to be mown every other year.  It would be three years before the 63 
first area would be mown again.  He recommended that since the woody growth is 64 
increasing to mow the full field in 2023 and then divide into half every other year.  65 
There is a lot of multiflora rose and autumn olive which are invasive species.  She 66 
noted she has seen a lot more diversity with annuals.  She reported he brush 67 
hogged the Stone property by Powder Mill Road and it looks good.  He 68 
recommended two cut next year in June and August.  The first cut will trigger 69 
resprouting. 70 
 71 
Mr. Clement indicated he would like to see an opportunity for agricultural use or 72 
community gardens there.  The soil was fertile there.  Ms. Murphy noted the south 73 
side at Raynes can be used for community gardens. 74 
 75 
Mr. Koff noted there is no water or electricity, but a tank could be placed.  There are 76 
no deed restrictions for agriculture on the parcel.  Ms. Murphy noted there is a gas 77 
line to consider close to the access way. 78 
 79 
Mr. Koff indicated the Commission would figure out how to come up with the 80 
additional $2,000 to fund additional mowing. 81 
 82 

iii.  Raynes Farm Project 83 
 84 
Ms. Murphy noted the Commission received an L-Chip Grant for $100,000 matched by 85 
residents with another $100,000 and $50,000 from the Commission for the repairs at 86 
Raynes Barn.  She put out two RFPs and has not received any qualified response.  She 87 



3 
 

reached out to the company, Bedard Preservation, who did the identification and cost of 88 
repairs, and they are willing to complete the project now that they have time in their 89 
schedule.  However costs have now increased by $50,000 due to inflation and what they 90 
have would only purchase clapboards and paint two sides.  They would focus on the 91 
south and east sides which are the worst.  She submitted a Scope of Work Amendment 92 
to L-Chip and would contract with Bedard before the end of December. 93 
 94 
Ms. Murphy researched grants and found one with T-Mobile that is $50,000 and closes 95 
at the end of December.  The grant is for improving community facilities and promoting 96 
public spaces.  She would hear by January or February.  She is getting letters of support 97 
from the Historical Society, the Merrills (former farmer), the Word Barn, Facilities 98 
Advisory Committee is presenting at the end of the week and with the Select Board.  If 99 
successful she would go back to L-Chip and amend the contract with Bedard.  The 100 
contingency plan is the Moose Plate but that would delay until 2024.  She thanked Don 101 
and Sally for providing feedback and edits on the application. 102 
 103 
iv.  Griset-Mendez Property Update 104 
 105 
Ms. Murphy reported she received no update from the State on the wetland issue 106 
raised.  She shared the photos and information and asked if a permit were issued.  The 107 
no-hunting signage has been installed.  She ordered custom signs. 108 
 109 
v.  Amundsen Easement Grantor Request 110 
 111 
Ms. Murphy noted a property owner came in and wants to cut back two and a half acres 112 
off Garrison Lane, but the plan doesn’t line up with the aerial, so the proposal is unclear 113 
to her at this point.  There is a large easement with exclusion area. 114 

 115 
b. Trails 116 
 117 
Mr. Koff reported there was a Trails Committee meeting  last week.  Mr. Welch attended and 118 
Mr. Short phoned in.  Toby from Fort Rock Riders was there.   They discussed closures of side 119 
trails.  Toby has signs that say closed for revegetation.  Someone took down some of the 120 
Conservation signs.  Mr. Welch brought maps called heat maps that track use by bike or 121 
pedestrian on trail apps.  He showed locations where bikes might like what he called spaghetti 122 
trails whereas pedestrians don’t want to see the same sights.  A lot are on private property and 123 
the community will be sad if those go away. 124 
 125 
Mr. Koff indicated the need for better signage and possibly QR codes to assist those getting lost.  126 
The Commission could reach out to the Fire Department to see if they have records of where 127 
people are having difficulty most often.  Blazing could be closer together and signs could 128 
indicate the direction to parking lots. 129 
 130 
Ms. Murphy will bring the budget to the next meeting. 131 



4 
 

 132 
c.  Outreach Events 133 

 134 
i.  9/25 Kayak Program Report 135 
 136 
Mr. Welch and Mr. Madison attended the Kayak program.  About eight people joined them.  137 
The cost is $25 and includes kayak, paddle and lifejacket.  Parks & Recreation may be 138 
interested in sponsoring more events. 139 
 140 
ii.  10/21 SkyWatch Report 141 
 142 
Mr. Koff attended the SkyWatch event and noted there were about 28 people in 143 
attendance.  He thanked the NH Astronomical Society for giving the presentation in the barn 144 
and setting up their telescopes for viewers.  He hoped this would be a regular event and 145 
happen in warmer months also. 146 
 147 
Ms. Murphy noted it was difficult with lighting to get people from the barn back to the 148 
parking area where the telescopes were set up.  She encouraged attendees to bring their 149 
red flashlights and noted lanterns could be placed. 150 
 151 

d.  Other Committee Reports (River Study, Sustainability, Energy, CPAC, Tree) 152 
 153 

Ms. Murphy noted Mr. Mattera attended the River Study Committee meeting on October 20th.  154 
Paul Vlasich, the Town Engineer, presented the updates on Pick Pocket Dam and syphon 155 
updates.  156 
 157 
Ms. Murphy noted the Sustainability Committee is presenting to the Select Board on the 14th 158 
concerning single use plastics. 159 
 160 
Ms. Murphy noted the Energy Committee and Community Power created a timeline as to what 161 
can be implemented.  Sustainability and Energy talked about getting together to collaborate and 162 
share resources and outreach on ordinances.  Sustainability meets on the 1st Tuesday of the 163 
month and Energy meets on the 2nd Wednesday during the day. 164 
 165 
Ms. Murphy reported the Tree Committee hosted their tree program and added labels to some 166 
trees at Swasey. 167 

 168 
3. Approval of Minutes 169 
 170 

a.  September 13, 2022 Meeting 171 
 172 

Mr. Koff motioned to approve the September 13, 2022 minutes.  Mr. Madison seconded the 173 
motion.  A vote was taken, all were in favor, the motion passed 5-0-0. 174 

 175 



5 
 

4.  Correspondence 176 
 177 

Ms. Murphy reported she received a notification from Brendan Quigley concerning the Glerups 178 
projects with minor requests from NH DES to communicate with the abutter and correspondence 179 
from Fish & Game asking for notices of protected species and that the Functions and Values report 180 
address vernal pools. 181 
 182 

5. Other Business 183 
 184 

Ms. Murphy noted the Carlisle project is going to the Planning Board on Thursday.  The Gateway 185 
project got additional state funding. 186 
 187 
Ms. Murphy reported the NHACC Conference was held.  She and Mr. Madison attended.  He went to 188 
climate adaption workshops, and they discussed SLR and precipitation.  Ms. Murphy attended 189 
Conservation Fund Best Practices and was surprised to learn what happens when the budget isn’t 190 
approved, and it goes to default and can be re-arranged by the Select Board.  She noted she was 191 
disappointed Dover cancelled their presentation on TDR (Transfer of Development Rights).  They 192 
have a robust Conservation fund as a result and she would like to learn more. 193 
 194 
Ms. Murphy attended a seminar at Plymouth Community College which partnered with the 195 
Conservation Commission and High School to conduct their natural resources inventory.  She noted 196 
high schools get free access to ESRY.  They focused on wildlife and trials and the effect of trails on 197 
wildlife. 198 
 199 

7.  Next Meeting:  Date Scheduled (12/13/22), Submission Deadline (12/2/22) 200 
 201 
8.  Adjournment 202 
 203 
MOTION:   Mr. Koff moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:34 PM seconded by Mr. Madison.  A vote was 204 
taken, all were in favor, the motion passed unanimously. 205 
 206 

Respectfully submitted, 207 

 208 
Daniel Hoijer, Recording Secretary 209 
Via Exeter TV 210 


	Oaklands Rte 85 Kiosk Sign.pdf
	Oaklands Town Forest Region 

	H-S Kiosk Sign.pdf
	Henderson Swasey Town Forest 

	Griset_Mendez_Kiosk 2022.pdf
	Brickyard Park and Griset-Mendez Conservation Area




